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SCARNED ayg 15 2011

|  omBNo 1545-0047

2010

Open to Public

Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung
benefit trust or private foundation)

af:::," ;::,::,3: st::;"y » The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements. Inspection
A . For the 2010 calendar year, or tax year begirLing , and endin
B Check if applicable JC Name of organization PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CJP Employer identification number
Address change Doing Business As 36-3959353
Name change Number and street (or P O. box if mail 1s not delivered to street address) |Room/suite E Telephone number
] imitat retum 180N_Michigan Ave. 1200 |(312) 629-2988 -
I:] Terminated City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4
[ ] Amended reun  |CHICAGO L 60601 G Gross receipts $ 4,549 026
D Application pending | F Name and address of pnncipal officer H(a) Is this a group return for affiiates? DYes m No
H{(b) Are all affiiates included? l:]YesD No
1 Tax-exempt status 501(c)(3)|_—_] 501(c) ( ) < (nsertno) D4947(a)(1)0r D 527 If "No," altach a hist (see instructions)
J Website: P H(c) Group exemption number P
K Form of organization Corporation I:I Trust D Association D Other » l L Year of formation I M State of legal domicile
Summary _
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: ~ The orgnization was formed to cooperate
with organizations in the public and private secters In developing innovative programs, _____________ ... ___...___.__..__.._..
3 projects and opportunities to improve the availability and guality of public health, . _______________ . . . ... _ ...
£ personal health and mental health services. e
% 2 Check this box »D if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
3 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . e 3 5
& | 4 Number ofindependent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) . . . . . 4 5
'_f 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2010 (Part V, line 2a) . 5 37
2 | 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) 6
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Vill, column (C) line 12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 . L. 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIll, line 1h) . . N A 3,372,166 4,457,836
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VIil, line 2g) . 26,110 81,490
E 10 Investment income (Part VI, column (A), lines Sll .. 3,537 1,788
11 Otherrevenue (Part VI, column (AL c \Je e) .o 627 7,912
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 {must art’\7|l|, colurnn | el?). . 3,402,440 4,549,026
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (P rt olumn (A): In@\‘\—& 2\ 0 0
14  Benefits paid to or for members (Pari\IX colu(q\b I|ne 4. . .o 0 0
» |15  Salaries, other compensation, employee Rehefits (Part IX u‘l‘t\ ] @ﬁnes 10) . . 302,249 911,601
@ [16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, . . 0 0
& | b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, co mr\eYS) L R R SR - MR U ek
“ 117 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), Im Ta-11d, 1 1f-24f) . e 3 028,624 3,448,920
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13~17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . . 3,330,873 4,360,521
119 Revenue less expenses Subtract line 18 from line 12. . . L. 71,567 188,505
58 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
‘§§ 20 Total assets (Part X, line16). . . . . . . . e e e e 906,576 1,359,940
5‘; 21 Total liabilities (Part X, ne 26) . . . . . e e e 724,286 998,238
Z22]|22 Net assets or fund balances Subtract line 21 from Ime 20 . 182,290 361,702

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retumn, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge
and belief, it 1s true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge

Sign '
Here Signature of officer /7 A,J-( M Date
Oliver Nichols - Chief Financial Officer

Type or pnnt name and title

Pnnt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date PTIN
Paid S A _;l_é_ check [ ]
Preparer's MIRZA BAIG 7/21/2011 | self-employed
Use Only Frrm's name __ » MIRZA BAIG & COMPANY Firm's EIN ®» 36-4211016

Firm's address ® 333 N. MICHIGAN AVE., CHICAGO, IL 60601 Phoneno  (312) 236-2077
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (seeinstructions). . . . . . . . . . R Yes D No
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2010)
(HTA)
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Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 2

Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
. Check if Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthisPartil. . . . . . . . . .. . . []

1  Briefly describe the organization's mission:
The orgnization was formed to_cooperate with organizations in the publicand private____________________ .. . .. ___._...___.
- secters in developing innovative programs, projects and opportunities to improvethe ___________ .. ...
avallability and quality of public heaith, personal health and mental health services. _______ ...
2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 or 990-E2?. . . . . . . . . . coo o [ Yes No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
sevices? . . . . . . L L s e e e e DYes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.
4  Describe the exempt purpose achievements for each of the organization's three largest program services by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and
allocations to others, the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported.
4a (Code: _____ ________ ) (Expenses $ __ - 1,280,995 includng grantsof $ __ 0 )(Revenue $ __ 1,283,114)
HIV / AIDS Rapid Testing : To reduce morbidity by preventing cases and complications of sexually ____________ . .. __....______.
transmitted diseases. Project grants awarded to State and local Health departments emphasizethe | _______ . .. ______._.________
development and implementation of nationally uniform prevention and control programs whichfocus_____________ . _______________
on disease intervention activities designed to reduce the incidence of these diseases: __________ ... .. ...
4b (Code: ________ _____ ) (Expenses $ _____2,047,503 including grantsof $ ____ 0 )(Revenue$ ____ __ 2,168,619)
COMMUNITY PUTTING PREVENTION TO WORK: ARRA funding to reduce Chronic Diseases risk factors, _________.___________.
prevent and delay chronic diseases, promote wellness, and better manage chronic conditionsin ________________ . ______..______..
Suburban_ Cook County. This initiative will address the following: Increased levels of physical ____________________.__________._._..
activity and ImprOy e d MU N, e
4c (Code: _____________ )(Expenses $ _______ 741,009 includnggrantsof$ ______ ______ 0 )(Revenue$ _______ 1 829,127 )
HIV/AIDs Re:Entry: To provide a program through seven subcontractors will_develop and implement _________________________._.
services designed to help inmates from the jails to their prospective Illinois communities. . _____________ . ______..__.____..
4d Other program services. (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ 0 including grants of $ 0) (Revenue $ 0)
4e _Total program service expenses » 4,069,507

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 3
Checklist of Required Schedules

- Yes | No
1 Is'the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? /f "Yes,"”

complete Schedule A . . Ce e 1] X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B Schedule of Contnbutors'7 (see mstructlons) e e 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to

candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part! . . . . . .o 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying actlvrtles or have a sectlon 501(h)

election in effect during the tax year? /f "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part il . . .. R 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) arganization that receives membershrp dues

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C,

Partill . . . . . Co 5
6 Did the organization mamtaln any donor advrsed funds or any S|mrlar funds or accounts where donors have

the right to provide advice on the distnbution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule D, Part! . . . . . . R .o 6 X
7 Dud the organization receive or hold a conservatlon easement rncludmg easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Partill . . . . . . . 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule D, Partill . . . . . AN 8 X

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X llne 21 serve as a custodlan for amounts not llsted in Part
X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotlatlon services? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule D, Part1V . . .. . . . . 9 X

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organlzatlon hold assets in term permanent or
quasi-endowments? /f "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part V .
11 [f the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D Parts VI
VI, VI, I1X, or X as applicable .
a Did the organization report an amount for land burldmgs and equrpment in Part X lrne 10” lf "Yes complete
Schedule D, Part VI. . .
b Did the organization report an amount for mvestments——other securltles in Part X Irne 12 that is 5% or more

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VII. . . . . . . 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part VIll. . . . . . R Rk [ X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets

reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, PartIX.. . . . . . 11d X

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes " complete Schedule D PartX 11e{ X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartX. . . 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts Xi, Xll, and Xl ce . 12a X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, mdependent audlted f nancral statements for the tax year’7 If "Yes "
and if the organization answered "No" fo line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI, XlI, and Xlll is optional . 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? /f "Yes,” complete ScheduleE . . . . . . . . | 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . . . . . |14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundrarsmg,
business, and program service activities outside the United States? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts and IV . |14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any
organization or entity located outside the United States? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV . . .. 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance
to individuals located outside the United States? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts llland IV . . . . .. 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services
on Part IX, column (A), ines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions) . . .. .. 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Partil . . . . . .. 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming actrvrtres on Part VIII lrne 9a'7
If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Partlll . . . . . e e e .. |19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hosprtals” If "Yes complete Schedule H Coe .. . |20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach its audited financial statements to this retum? Note Some
Form 990 filers that operate one or more hospitals must attach audited financial statements (see instructions). . . |20b

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 4
m Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
. Yes | No
21 Bid the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
in the United States on Part X, column (A), line 1? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts | and Il . 21 X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to individuals in the
United States on Part X, column (A), line 2? If "Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts | and Il . 22 X
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J . 23 X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond 1ssue wuth an outstandrng pnnupal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes,"” answer lines
24b through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25 . 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary penod exceptron’7 24b X
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? . . 24c X
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstandrng at any trme dunng the year’? 24d X
25a Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction
with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a
prior year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or
990-EZ? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | . 25b X
26 Was a loan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee key employee hlghly compensated employee or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization's tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part!l . | 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee,
substantial contributor, or a grant selection committee member, or to a person related to such an individual?
If "Yes,"” complete Schedule L, Part lil . X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transactlon wuth one of the follownng partles (see Schedule L v gﬁﬁ
Part IV instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): . ? “’%ﬂ
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete
Schedule L, Part IV . . 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former off' icer, dlrector trustee or key employee (or a famrly member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M . 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule M . 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operatrons’? If ”Yes complete Schedule N
Part! . 31 X
32 Didthe organlzatlon seII exchange drspose of or transfer more than 25% of |ts net assets'7
If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part Il . 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity dlsregarded as separate from the organlzatlon under Regulatlons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | . 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entlty’7 If "Yes," complete Schedule R Parts II
m 1Iv, and Vv, line 1 . . . 34 X
35 Is any related organization a controlled entrty W|thrn the meaning of sectron 512(b)(13)'7 35 X
a Did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R,
PartV,lne2 . . . . . .. [es [X]no
36 Section 501(c)(3) orgamzatlons D|d the organlzatlon make any transfers to an exempt non-chantable related
organization? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entlty that 1S not a related organrzatron
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 and
19?7 Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. . 38| X

Form 990 (2010)



Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 5

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part V.

-

1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . SN 1a
‘b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . 1b
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? .
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmrttal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn . | 2a
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax retums?
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file. (see instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? .
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? /f “No,"” provide an explanation in Schedule O .
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authorlty
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? . . .
b If"Yes," enter the name of the forelgn country P o
See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts.
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? .
¢ If"Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? .
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100 000 and d|d the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible? . 6a X
b If"Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contrlbutlons or
gifts were not tax deductible? .
7  Organizations that may receive deductlble contrlbutlons under sectnon 170(c)
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . R
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provrded'7
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tanglble personal property for which it was
required to file Form 82827 . e e e e X
d If"Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 fled dunng the year. . . . . . ... ... ldl_ A ﬂmm
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? . . | 7g_ X
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? . | 7h X
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting
organizations. Did the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring
organization, have excess business holdings at any time during the year? .
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 .
b Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?
10  Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIil, hne 12. . . . . . . . |[10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facnlmes . . . l10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . .. 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or pald to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the orgamzatlon ﬁllng Form 990 in Iveu of Form 10417 .
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. . . . [12b
13  Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? .
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans. . . . . . . . . . . < . . {13b
¢ Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for |ndoor tannlng services durlng the tax year’? . 14a X
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No, " provide an explanation in Schedule O . 14b

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353

page 6

Part Vi Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and

Yor a "No" response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in
Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VI .

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear. . . 1a 5 ;;5}“\
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent. . . 1b 5 z}%,{
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with S
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . 2
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customanly performed by or under the dlrect
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? . 4 | X
§ Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? . 5 X
6 Does the organization have members or stockholders? . 6 | X

7a Does the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who may elect one or more members
of the governing body? .

b Are any decisions of the governing body subject to approval by members stockholders or other persons'7

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or wntten actions undertaken during
the year by the following:

a The governing body? .

b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the govermng body’7

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached

at the organization's mailing address? If "Yes, " provide the names and addresses in Schedule O . . . . 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Does the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . 10a X
b If"Yes," does the organization have written policies and procedures govermng the actrvntles of such chapters
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with those of the organization?. . . . . . |10b
11a Has the organization prowded a copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the
form?. . . . 11al X
b Describe in Schedule o] the process, If any, used by the organlzatlon to review thls Form 990 i 3| Aed
12a Does the organization have a wntten conflict of interest policy? If "No,"go folne 13. . . . . . ... M12a] X
b Are officers, directors or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could glve
rise to conflicts? . . . . .. 12b| X

¢ Does the organization regularly and consnstently momtor and enforce comphance w:th the pohcy” If "Yes
describe in Schedule O how this is done .

13 Does the organization have a written whlstleblower pollcy'7

14 Does the organization have a written document retention and destructlon pollcy"

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official.

b Other officers or key employees of the organization .

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (See mstructrons ) . .
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or partrcrpate ina Jomt venture or similar arrangement

with a taxable entity during the year? .

b If"Yes," has the organization adopted a written pohcy or procedure requiring the orgamzatton to evaluate
its participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and taken steps to safeguard

the organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed » IL

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)(3)s only)
available for public inspection. Indicate how you make these available. Check all that apply.
Own website |:| Another's website Upon request
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how), the organization makes its governing documents, conflict of interest
policy, and financial statements available to the public.
20 State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the
organization: » Oliver Nichols (312) 566-0285

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in thisPartVIl. . . . . . . . . . D

Section A, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization’s tax year.

e List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

¢ List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

¢ List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations
List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees, officers; key employees, highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.

I:l Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

-

(A) (8) ) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position (check all that apply) Reportable Reportable Estmated
hours per HIE X T compensation compensation amount of
week gglzlg|2|3g8|2 from from related other
(descnbe aa g 2 g R E] the organizations compensation
hours for es|lo|®]alg25|2 organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related 22 = 8 gg (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations =2 1 3 k< and related
n Schedule g a g organizations
0) 3 8
a
_{1)__Dr.RossanaE.Barren ___________________.
Chairman 2| X 0 0 0
_{2) MarkSGrach ________ ...
Secretary/Treasurer 2.} X 0 0 0
_(3)._DaleGalssie ...
Board Member 11 X 0 0 0
_{4) _CarmenVelasquez ______________________.
Board Member 1] X 0 0 0
_{5)__Sidney Thomas ______________ ...
Board Member 1.1 X 0 0 0
_{6)__Patricklenihan _________________________.
Executive Director 40. X 116,900 0 0
_{7)__QliverNichols________ .
CFO 40. X 50,314 0 0
) e
)
0) s
) e
) e
L
L T
S38) e
8 e

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
: (A) (8) (€) (D) (E) (F)
Name and titte Average Position (check all that apply) Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per HEE X T compensation compensation amount of
week EHEE 2log| T from from related other
(descnbe aal € g ¢3° é el 3 the organizations compensation
hours for ® 5 g Sleleg ® organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related g8 5 B ols g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations |~ G| = 31 © and related
in Schedule 'gf & ] orgamzations
0) 8 B
2
K L
8) e
) e
20) e
L
-
23 e
K
28 s
126)
L 5
328 e
1b Sub-total . > 167,214 0 0
¢ Total from contlnuatlon sheets to Part VII Sectlon A .» 0 0] 0
d Total (add lines 1b and 1¢). . > 167,214 0 0

2  Total number of individuals (including but not hmlted to those Ilsted above) who received more than $100,000 in
reportable compensation from the organization

»

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated

employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual .

4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such

individual .

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If "Yes, " complete Schedule J for such person .

Section B. Independent Contractors

1  Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization

(A)

Name and business address

®)

Descnption of services

©)
Compensation

2  Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received
more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization

»

0

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 9
Statement of Revenue
) (A) (8} (€ ()]

Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from
function revenue tax under sections
revenue 512, 513, or 514

2 a 1a Federated campaigns . 1a 0
% 3| b Membership dues . 1b 0
,#_f E| ¢ Fundraising events . ic 0
% &| d Related organizations . id 0
g E| e Government grants (contnbutlons) 1e 4,423,711
2 2 f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
2 2 similar amounts not included above . 1f 34,125
"g'"-§ g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-4f: ¢ _____ 0 .
O ®| h Total. Add lines 1a—-1f . . > 4,457 836 #
] Business Code . Y
§ | 2a Managementfee __________ .. ____ 561000 81,490
& I 0
8 C 0
| o 0
E - 0
'g’ f All other program service revenue . 0
o | g Total. Add lines 2a-2f . . > 81,490 . 2 - e
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) . . .. 1,788
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds > 0
5 Royalties . C .. N 0
(1) Real (1) Personal | 5% & "_E v SR é?"%“‘ T E T f" 3?3‘”15\1
6a Gross Rents . . \,g,u“% ek g%gy o P PO T 1 4%” e
b Less: rental expenses . ] L P ARy R }s;‘ﬁ
¢ Rental income or (loss) . 0 ot %ﬁ ) el | i
d Net rental iIncome or (loss) . - ... .r 0
7a Gross amount from sales of (1) Secunties (n) Other o ; g ;? @9 P N TP I P >,.
assets other than inventory . 0 of " * L R ¢ -
b Less: cost or other basis NERR Y f? S R ?: i, N g %ﬁ? 4
and sales expenses . 0 of 4 -, & coe | s w1 ;%,, )
¢ Gain or (loss) . 0 0 ‘ : &
d Net gain or (loss) . » 0
® JERRNRT AN VIR ISP I S 3,% =Ty
2 | 8a Grossincome from fundraising ) . ) Lo
g events (notincluding$ _____ ! 0 L B N * R
© of contributions reported on line 1c). AT T TP R 5 %
5 See Part IV, line 18 . a 0 v R D Y
8 | b Less:direct expenses . b 0 T ] ) i
¢ Netincome or (loss) from fundralsmg events > 0
8a Gross income from gaming activities. . i 2
See Part 1V, line 19. a ol Ll
b Less: direct expenses . b 0 . 3
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming actlvmes > 0
10a Gross sales of inventory, less 4
returns and allowances . a 0
b Less: cost of goods sold . . b 0 v
¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of |nventory » 0
Miscellaneous Revenue Buslness Code &
11a Miscellaneousincome _____________ ______ 7,912
- 0
C 0
d Al other revenue . . 0
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d . . > 7,912 I
12 Total revenue. See instructions. . . > 4,549,026 0 0

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 10
Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns.
All other organizations must complete column (A) but are not required to complete columns (B), (C), and (D).

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Tota é)‘;\)enses b ra(:)semce Mana ‘(!fn)em . . éD)
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part ViI. i P ro"\e}xpenses genergl expenases ::per?tfer;g
1  Grants and other assistance to governments and o

organizations in the U.S. See Part IV, line21. . . . 0 ;
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in 40

the U S. SeePart iV, line22. . . . . - 0

3 Grants and other assistance to governments ¢
organizations, and individuals outside the '

U.S. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 . e e 0
4 Benefits paid to or for members . . . . C e 0
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors

trustees, and key employees . . . . 0

6 Compensation not included above, to dlsquallf ed
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and

persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . . - 0
7 Other salaries and wages . . . . . 714,826 663,086 51,740
8 Pension plan contributions (include sectlon 401(k)
and section 403(b) employer contributions) . . . . . 0
9 Otheremployeebenefits. . . . . . . . . . . . 123,368 114,966 8,402
10 Payrolltaxes . . . e e e 73,407 67,314 6,093
11 Fees for services (non- employees)
a Management. . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . 224 703 199,801 24,902 0
b Legal. . . . . . . . .. C e e e e 80,403 80,403 0 0
¢ Accounting. . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... 32,500 32,500 0 0
d Lobbying . 0
e Professional fundralsmg services. See Part IV line 17 . RS i e
f Investment management fees . 0
g Other. . 0
12  Advertising and promotlon e e e 0
13 Officeexpenses. . . . . . e 17,444 12,037 5,407 0
14 Informationtechnology. . . . . . . . . . . . 0
15 Royaltes. . . . . . . . . . . ... .. . 0
16 Occupancy. . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 122,167 95,174 26,993 0
17 Travel. . . . . . Coe 46,746 44 437 2,309 0
18 Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials . . . . 0
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings. . . . . 8,857 4,744 4,113 0
20 Interest. . . . e e e e A 0
21 Payments to affi Ilates . e e e 0
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatlon . .. 12,413 10,551 1,862 0
23 Insurance. . . . Co 15,861 15,591 270 0
24 Other expenses. Itemlze expenses not covered ¢ d - . h e |4 o §§» H
above (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24f. If . ’ ; i
line 24f amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column % i 3 + A
(A) amount, list ine 24f expenses on Schedule O.) . S . e % -
a Payrollprocessing ___________ .. ... 2,997 698 2,299 0
b Telephone 34,142 29,364 4,778 0]
¢ Confractualservices__________________________ 2,587,081 2,564 949 32,132 0
d Programexpenses ____________________ 219,829 219,829 0 0
e Repairs and Maintenance_______________________.__. 5,080 4,733 347 0
f Allother expenses (See Schedule Attached) 38,697 22,564 16,133 0
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24f 4,360,521 4,172,741 187,780 0

26  Joint costs. Check here >D if following
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720). Complete this line
only if the organization reported in column
(B) joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation .

Form 990 (2010)




Form 990 (2010) PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 11
Balance Sheet
' (A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing . . 94,781 1 356,545
2  Savings and temporary cash mvestments 0] 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 781,941] 3 852,451
4 Accounts receivable, net . . 7,518] 4 16,124
§ Receivables from current and former off icers, dlrectors trustees key )
employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete Part Il of
Schedule L . .. . 0l 5
6 Receivables from other dlsquahf ed persons (as def ned under sectlon i
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary
% employees' beneficiary organizations (see instructions) . Of 6
31 7 Notes and loans receivable, net . 0 7 0
< | 8 Inventories for sale or use . o 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 16,632 9 23,758
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or . ) Ty
other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D | 10a 124,512 » N N S
b Less: accumulated depreciation . 10b 13,450 5,704] 10c 111,062
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 0} 11
12 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, Iine 11 0] 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 0] 13
14 Intangible assets . 0] 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, llne 11 - . 0] 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal I|ne 34) 906,576] 16 1,359,940
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 679,403 17 936,802
18 Grants payable . o} 18 0
19 Deferred revenue . . 60,500] 19 29,651
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . 0] 20
8121 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 0] 21
£ 22 Payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, key L N R
g employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified vl s g e g&é‘%
-~ persons. Complete Part Il of Schedule L . 0] 22
23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third partles 0] 23 0
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . 0] 24 0
25 Other liabilities. Complete Part X of Schedule D . -15,617] 25 31,785
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 . 724,286| 26 998,238
m Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here b. and (R SR AR EARL
] complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. W - 2%
& |27  Unrestricted net assets . 182,290| 27 361,702
8 28 Temporarily restricted net assets . 0] 28
2|29 Permanently restncted net assets . . i} 0 ! 29 _ _—
& Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here bD ’ . H
o and complete lines 30 through 34. i " ‘j %
‘§ 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 0f 30
2 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 0] 31
< |32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . -18,154| 32
Z |33 Total net assets or fund balances . 182,290] 33 361,702
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances 906,576| 34 1,359,940

Form 990 (2010)




Form 890 (2010)  PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

36-3959353 rPage 12

Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XI .

L

DA DL WN =

Total revenue (must equal Part Vill, column (A), line 12) .

4,549,026

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) .

4,360,521

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 .

188,505

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X I|ne 33 column (A))

182,290

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) .

i 1IN f=a

-9,093

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3, 4, and 5 (must equal Part X Ilne 33
column (B)) .

(-2}

361,702

Financial Statements and Reportmg
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XII .

[

2a

3a

b

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash Accrual D Other

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in
Schedule O.

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .
Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? .

If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversnght of

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? .
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.

If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were
issued on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

D Separate basis I:] Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 . .
if "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audlts? If the organlzatlon dld not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits.

Yes | No

2a X

2b | X

2c

3a| X

3b{ X

Form 990 (2010)



;ﬁ;’fg’g‘ffj ::,O_Ez) Public Charity Status and Public Support |

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section

OMB No 1545-0047

2010

Department of the Treasury 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. »See separate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)
1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 D A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E.)

3 [:] A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 [:] A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b){1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, City, and state:

5 D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described
in section 170(b){1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I )

6 |:] A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

8 D A community trust described in section 170(b){(1){A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)

9 D An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross

receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part 111.)

10 l:] An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

11 I:] An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the
purposes of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section
509(a)(3). Check the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h.

a [ ] Typel b [] Typel ¢ [] Type ll-Functionally integrated d [] Type I-Other

e [:] By checking this box, | certify that the organization is not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified
persons other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section
509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2).

f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, or Type ill supporting
organization, check thisbox. . . . e e e D
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organlzatlon accepted any glﬂ or contnbutlon from any of the
following persons?
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (i) Yes | No
and (iii} below, the governing body of the supported organization? . . Ce o 11g(i)
(ii) A family member of a person described in (i) above?. . . . C e e e . 11g(ii)
(iii) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (i) or (ii) above'7 . e e e . 11g(iii)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (si) EIN (lii) Type of organization | (iv) Is the organization {v) Did you notify {vi)Is the (vil) Amount of
organizaton (descnbed on lines 1-9 | in col (1) isted n your |  the organization 1n organization n col. support
above or IRC section governing document? col (i) of your (i) organized in the
(see instructions)) support? Uus?
Yes No Yes No Yes No
(A)
0
(B)
0
(C)
0
(D)
0
(E)
0
Total _ ) . ‘ . - 0
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notlce, see the Instructions for Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010

Form 990 or 990-EZ.
(HTA)




Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2010 PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 2

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part Ill. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part il.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2006 (b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total

1

F-S

6

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.") . . . . . 165,348 171,904 2,409,029 3,372,166 4423711 10,542,158
Tax revenues levied for the organization's
benefit and either paid to or expended on
itsbehalf. . . . . . . 0 0
The value of services or facnlltles
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge . . . . . . 0] 0
Total. Add lines 1 through 3 . . . 165,348 171,904 2,409,029 3,372,166 4,423,711] 10,542,158
The portion of total contributions by each .. . A P R !

person (other than a governmental unit o D ) - S
or publicly supported organization) “ . TN P TR S
included on line 1 that exceeds 2% R Y IO SR R
of the amount shown on line 11, o E SERURE O ERRR ¥ %@, I % N R
column (f). . . o I R T
Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4.[ %=~ 8| % % 7] W e o [T T 10,542,158

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p»| (a) 2006 (b) 2007 (c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 {f) Total

7 Amounts fromline4. . . . . 165,348 171,904 2,409,029 3,372,166 4423,711] 10,542,158
8  Gross income from interest, dlwdends
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties and income from similar
sources. . . . .. 0 0
9  Netincome from unrelated busmess
activities, whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon. . . . . 0
10  Otherincome. Do not |nclude galn or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part IV.) . .. 0 _ 0
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10. . [ e o e deg e U @R R - 7 8] 10,542,158
12  Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see mstructlons) - 12 I
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second th|rd fourth orfi f fth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . . . e e e e e e PD
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14  Public support percentage for 2010 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . 14 100.00%
15  Public support percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Partll, line14. . . . . 15 100.00%
16a 33 1/3% support test—2010. If the organization did not check the box on line 13 and I|ne 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . .. . »
b 33 1/3% support test-2009. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and Ilne 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check thIS
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . N |:|
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test-2010. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14
is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances™ test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization.. . . . N D
b 10%-facts-and-cnrcumstances test—2009 If the orgamzatlon dld not check a box on Ilne 13 16a 16b or 17a and I|ne
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organizatlon qualifies as a publicly
supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... ... >|:]
18  Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a ,or 17b, check this box and see
instructions . >|:]

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010




Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010 PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 3
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 9 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 11.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) »{ (a) 2006 (b) 2007 {c) 2008 (d) 2009 e) 2010 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.") 0 0
2  Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities furnished
in any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose . 0 0
3  Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513 0
4  Tax revenues levied for the organization’s
benefit and either paid to or expended on
its behalf . 0 0
5 The value of services or faculmes
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge . 0 0
6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5. 0 0 0 0 0
7a Amounts included onlines 1,2, and 3
received from disqualified persons . 0
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year 0
¢ Add lines 7a and 7b 0
8  Public support (Subtract line 7¢ from o) % ;
hne 6.) . %’»“"W' L 0
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2006 (b) 2007 {(c) 2008 (d) 2009 (e) 2010 (f) Total
9  Amounts from hne 6 0 0 0 0 0
10a Gross income from interest, d:wdends
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties and income from similar sources 0
b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 0
¢ Add lines 10a and 10b . 0 0 0 0 0
11 Net income from unrelated business
achivittes not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business Is regularly carmed on 0
12  Other income Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part IV) . 0 0
13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and12). .. 0 0 0 0 0
14  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here > D
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2010 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) . 15 0.00%
16  Public support percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Part iil, ine 15 16 0.00%
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2010 (ine 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 17 0.00%
18  Investment income percentage from 2009 Schedule A, Part lll, ine 17 18 0.00%
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2010. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and I|ne 15 1s more than 33 1/3% and ine 17 1s
not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization » D
b 33 1/3% support tests—2009. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and hine 16 1s more than 33 1/3% and
ine 18 1s not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . > I:]
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 18b, check this box and see instructions . > D

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010




Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010 PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353 Page 4

Part IV Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10;
Part I, line 17a or 17b; and Part lll, line 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See
instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2010




SCHEDULE D | omBNo 1545-0047

(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements
- ) » Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990,
Part iV, line6,7,8,9,10,11, or 12. Open to Public
q?,?::;" ,:2:,2:,3: 31;:?::” » Attach to Form 990. P See separate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer Identification number
PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if
the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

N E W=

(-2}

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year .

Aggregate contributions to (during year)
Aggregate grants from (during year) .
Aggregate value at end of year .

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . . . . . . D Yes [:] No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be

used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other

purpose conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . .. N |:| Yes I:] No

I Conservation Easements. Complete if the orgamzatron answered Yes' 1o Form 990, Part 1V, line 7.

1

2

o T 7 I = o )

a &

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g , recreation or education) Preservation of an historically important land area

D Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure

D Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year.

MR neid at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements . . . . . . . e e e 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . .. 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure lnc!uded in (a) e 2c
Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register. . . . 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred released extrngurshed or termrnated by the organization
during the taxyear » .

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located S

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements itholds? . . . . . .. D Yes D No
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservatlon easements during the year
>

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
> $
Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section
170(h)(4)(B)(i) and section 170(0)(&)B)([)?. . . . . . oo oo yes[] No
In Part X1V, describe how the organization reports conservatlon easements in rts revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that descnbes
the organization's accounting for conservation easements
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet

2

a
b

works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance

of public service, provide, in Part XIV, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

if the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of ant, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance

of public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenues included in Form 990, Part Vill, ine 1. . . .. A

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . N &
If the organization received or held works of art, hlstoncal treasures or other srmllar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:
Revenues included in Form 990, PartVill,line1. . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. ... »§
Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . &

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2010

(HTA)




PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010 Page 2
L4l  Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant
+  use of its collection items (check all that apply):
a D Public exhibition d D Loan or exchange programs
b D Scholarly research e D ONer
c |:| Preservation for future generations
4  Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in
Part XIV.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of ant, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? . . . . l:l Yes D No

1tV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part
IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contnibutions or other assets not
included on Form 990, PartX?. . . . . oo Yes[] o

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIV and complete the followmg table

Amount
¢ Beginningbalance. . . . . . . o L0000 0 Lo oL 1c 0]
d Addtionsduringtheyear. . . . . . . . . . . . . .. e e e e 1d
e Distributions during the year . e e e e Coe e . 1e
f Endingbalance. . . . . . . . . . . .. .. e e e e e e 1f 0
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line2t?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . EI Yes No

b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIV.
Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
{a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance . . . . 0 L ;
b Contributions .
¢ Netinvestment earmngs gams
and losses . .
d Grants or scholarshlps
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs .
f Administrative expenses

g Endofyearbalance. . . . 0 0
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the year end balance held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment > %
b Permanent endowment > i %,
¢ Termendowment » %
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by. Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations. . . . . . e e e e e s e e . 3a(i)
(ii) related organizations. . . . e e . 3a(ii)
b If"Yes" to 3a(ii), are the related organlzatlons Ilsted as requnred on Schedule R" e e e e 3b

4 Describe in Part XIV the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Descnption of investment (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) basis (other) depreciation

1a Land. 0 of - 0
b Buildings . 0 0 0 0

¢ Leasehold |mprovements 0 0 0 0

d Equipment. e e e 0 124,512 -17,598 111,062
e Other. . . . 0 0 0 0
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c)) . . . . . ™ 111,062

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353
Page 3
Investments—Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of secunty or category {b) Book value (c) Method of valuation

(tncluding name of security)

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives . .
(2) Closely-held equity interests .
(3) Other

B o
S (- )
S o
B 0
S (=
B
B
O )
()

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lne 12 ) »

Qiojoloolo|lo|ojlo|cjo oo

R
: ' i [
5 L o : ab S Sk

Investments—Program Related. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

{a) Descnption of investment type

{b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

{7)

(8)

9

{10)

Total. (Column (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B} hine 13) »

(o] (e][e][s]{c][e])(=][=]}[a][«][e]

RN 2 . e daE | S
e O BT e LG aa G IES

Other Assets. See Form 990,

Part X, line 15.

(a) Descrniption

(b) Book value

(1)

(2)

(3)

4

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

col. (B) line 15) .

QOO0 |C|lo|C |00 |0 ][O

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, .
m Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1 (a) Descnption of hability

(b) Amount

(1) Federal income taxes

(2) Funds held for others

31,785

(3)

(4)

{5)

{6)

{7)

(8)

{9)

(10)

(11

(e} (=] {=1[=](=][=][=] (=] (=)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B} ine 25 ) »

31,785

e g A

I3 - B H

2. FIN 48 (ASC 740) Footnote. In Part XIV, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2010 Page 4
Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 990 to Audited Financial Statements
1  Total revenue (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line12). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 1 4,549 026
2 Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX, column (A), line 25) . 2 4,360,521
3 Excess or (deficit) for the year. Subtract line 2 from line 1. . 3 188,505
4 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . 4
5 Donated services and use of facilities . 5
6 Investment expenses . 6
7 Prior period adjustments . 7
8 Other (Describe in Part XIV.) . . 8
9 Total adjustments (net). Add lines 4 through 8 9 0
10 Excess or (deficit) for the year per audited financial statements Comblne lmes 3 and 9 10 188,505
Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . 4,549 026
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part Vili, ine 12:
a Net unrealized gains on investments . . R C e e e e 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities . . . e e 2b
¢ Recoveries of prioryeargrants. . . . . - e . 2c
d Other(DescribeinPartXIV.). . . . . . . . . . .. .. .. 2d
e Addlines 2a through 2d . 0
3 Subtract line 2e fromline 1. .. . 4,549,026
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII I|ne 12, but not on I|ne 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b. . . . 4a
b Other(DescribeinPartXiV). . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. . .. 4b
¢ Addlines 4a and 4b . . 0]
Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c (Th/s must equal Fonn 990 Partl I/ne 12 ) . 4,549,026
Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. L 1 4,360,521
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part [X, line 25: Ny
a Donated services and use of facilities . . . . .. e e e 2a
b Prioryearadjustments. . . . . . . . . . . .. e e 2b
¢ Otherlosses. . . . 2¢
d Other (Describe in Part XIV) e e e e e Ce 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d . 0
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1. . . 4,360,521
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, I|ne 25 but not on Ime 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b. . . . 4a
b Other (DescribeinPartXIV.). . . . . . . . . . . . . ... .. 4b
¢ Addlines 4a and 4b . . 0
5  Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. ( ThIS must equal Fonn 990 Partl Ilne 18 ) 4,360,521

Suppliemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part ll, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b
and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, line 8; Part XII, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XllI, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete
this part to provide any additional information.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010
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Part XiV Supplemental Information (continued)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2010




SCHEDULE O . | omBNo 15450047
Formssoorsso.ezy | OUPPlemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2@1 0
o ' © of the Trea Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. Open to Public
epartment of sury 3
. Internal Revenue Sevice »  Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 890 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2010)
(HTA)
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MIRZA BAIG & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants

333 N. Miciugan Ave., Suite 2032 2025 W Granville, Unit 209
Chicago, IL 60601 Chicago, 1L 60659
Tel: (312) 236-2077 Tel. (773) 770-6124
Fax: (312) 726-9520 Fax: (773) 733-0825

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Board of Directors
Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago
Chicago, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Public Health Institute of
Metropolitan Chicago (the Institute) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Institute’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The prior year summarized
comparative information has been derived from Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago’s
2008 financial statements and, in our report dated July 30, 2009 we expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the USA
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago as of December 31, 2010
and 2009, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the USA.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated July
10, 2011 on our consideration of Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago’s internal
control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this
report in considering the results of our audit.

1
Members: AICPA * Illinots CPA Sociely * Association of Government. Accountants




MIRZA BAIG & COMPANY
Centified Public Accountants

Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements of Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago taken as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the purposes of additional analysis
as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,” and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Chicago, lllinois AV"’X/)'\ ﬂd"j £ L-pay

July 10, 2011




PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITIAN CHICAGO

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009

ASSETS: 2010 2009
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 356,545 $ 94,781
Grants and contracts receivable 852,451 781,941
Prepaid expenses 23,758 16,632
Other receivables 16,124 7,518
Total current assets 1,248,878 900,872
Property and Equipment:
Furniture and equipment 124,512 37,858
Less accumulated depreciation (13,450) (32,154)
Net property and equipment 111,062 5,704
Total assets $ 1,359,940 $ 906,576
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 936,302 $ 679,403
Refundable advances - 60,500
Deferred rent 29,651 -
Funds held for others 31,785 (15,617)
Total liabilities 998,238 724,286
Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets 361,702 182,290
Total net assets 361,702 182,290
Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,359,940 $ 906,576

See accompanying notes to financial statements

3




PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITIAN CHICAGO

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

REVENUE: ' 2010 2009
Grant/contract support $ 4,423,711 $ 3,372,166
Program income 34,125 -
Grant management fees 81,490 26,110
Interest and investment income 1,788 3,537
Other income 7,912 627

TOTAL REVENUE 4,549,026 3,402,440

EXPENSES:

Program services:

AmeriCorp 52,090 39,486
HIV/AIDS Prevention - Rapid Testing 1,280,995 1,993,941
HIV/AIDS Prevention - Re-Entry 741,009 751,332
Community Putting Prevention to Work 2,047,503 243,356
Enhanced Comprehensive HIV Prevention Planning 51,144 169,369

Total program services 4,172,741 3,197,484

Supporting services:

Management and general 187,780 133,389
Total supporting services 187,780 133,389

Total expenses 4,360,521 3,330,873
Increase in unrestricted net assets 188,505 71,567

Net assets, beginning of year - as previously reported 182,290 128,877
Prior period adjustment (9,093) (18,154)
Net assets, beginning of year - as restated 173,197 110,723
Unrestricted net assets, end of year $ 361,702 $ 182,290

See accompanying notes to financial statements

4




PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITIAN CHICAGO

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Changes in net assets $188,505 $71,567
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 12,413 37,939
(Increase) in grant receivable (70,510) (167,224)
(Increase) in prepaid insurance (7,126) (2,982)
(Increase) Decrease in other receivables (8,606) 73,096
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 258,415 141,354
(Decrease) in accrued payroll and taxes (1,016) (160)
Increase (Decrease) in funds held for others 16,168 (27,235)
Increase in deferred rent 29,651 -
(Decrease) in refundable advance (60,500) (152,387)
Prior period adjustments (9,093) (18,154)
Net cash used by operating activities 348,301 (44,186)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net additions to property and equipment (86,537) (6,811)
Net cash used by investing activities (86,537) (6,811)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 261,764 (50,997)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 94,781 145,778
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $356,545 $94,781

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Nature of Activities

The Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago (the Institute) is a not-for-profit Illinois corporation
exempt from income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. The Institute is not
considered to be a private foundation. The Institute was formed in 1994 to cooperate with organizations in
the public and private sectors in developing innovative programs, projects and opportunities to improve
the availability and quality of public health, personal health and mental health services.

The Institute provides the following major programs:

e HIV/AID Prevention Project
This Project works to integrate routine, rapid HIV testing into a variety of clinical settings
including emergency departments, STD clinics, and a jail-based clinic. This project seeks to
conduct 50,000 HIV tests per year and indentify 200 HIV- positive persons.

¢ Community Putting Prevention to Work
This Funding was appropriated under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 to
reduce Chronic Disease risk factors, prevent and delay chronic disease, promote wellness, and
better manage chronic conditions in Suburban Cook County. This initiative will address the
following:

Increased levels of physical activity
Improved nutrition (e.g. increased fruit/vegetable consumption, reduced salt and
transfats)

The Institute working in partnership with the Cook County Department of Public Health
(CCDPH), seeks to promote healthy lifestyle policy changes in schools, the workplace, and
community environments. The Institute and CCDPH will be working with community
organizations and local government entities, engaging in health campaigns, offering policy
advocacy trainings to communities, and awarding grants to communities and schools that are
willing to further the Grant goals.

(b) Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

(c) Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Non-
Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the Institute is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets,
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets, if applicable.




PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ei.ded December 31,2010 and 2009

NOTE | - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Revenue Recognition

The Institute recognizes contract revenue from its contracts either on a pro-rata basis over a twelve month
period, which represents the service period for certain contracts, or to the extent of expenses. Revenue
recognition depends on the contract. The funding agencies may at their discretion, request reimbursement
for expenses or return of funds, or both, as a result of non-compliance by the Institute with the terms of
the grants/contracts.

(e) Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific
purposes are reported as temporarily restricied or permanently restricted support that increases those net
asset classes. When a temporary restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
The Institute had no temporarily or permanently restricted net assets.

Contributions of donated non-cash assets are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that require specialized
skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation, are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

(f) Refundable Advances

The Institute records grant/contract revenue as a refundable advance until it is expended for the purpose
of the grant/contract, at which time it is recognized as revenue. The balance in refundable balances at
December 31, 2009 represents amounts received under cost reimbursable contracts that will be expended
in the next fiscal year in accordance with the grant/contract period. '

(g) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets acquired by the Institute are considered to be owned by the Institute except for the property
acquired with funds received from the Funding Agencies. Such property shall not be disposed off without
written approval from the Funding Agencies. The Funding Agencies may have a reversionary interest in
the property as well as the determination of use of any proceeds from the sale of these assets.

The Institute follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property, furniture, fixtures and
office equipment in excess of $500. Depreciation or amortization of all such items is computed on a

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to five years.

(h) Income Taxes

The Institute is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and therefore has made no provision for Federal income taxes in the accompanying financial statements.




PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less. Fair
value approximates carrying amounts.

(j) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the use of management’s estimates.

(k) Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
and supporting services benefited.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, Cash and cash equivalent consists of:

2010 2009
Checking accounts $234,490 $(439,331)
Now Account 122,056 534,112

$356,545 $ 94,781

The Institute maintains its cash balances in one financial institution. Under the Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act, all of the Institutes funds are insured in full by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) from December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2012. This temporary unlimited
coverage is in addition to, and separate from, the coverage of at least $250,000 available to depositors
under the FDIC's general deposit insurance rules.

NOTES 3 - GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts receivable at December 31, 2010 and 2009 consist of:

2010 2009
U.S. Department of Health XHuman Services $532,519 $389,077
State of Illinois Department of Public Health 263,108 392,864
The Health Federation of Philadelphia 22,699 -
AmeriCorp-Host Sites 34,125 -
$852,451 $781,941




PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

) ‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

NOTES 4 - FIXED ASSETS

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, fixed assets consist of:

Office equipment
Fumiture and Fixtures
Computer equipment
Leasehold Improvement

Less: accumulated depreciation

NOTE 5 - FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS

During the fiscal year the Institute served as the fiscal agent for several agencies. At December 31, 2010

2010 2009
$25,064 $21,087
61,601 13,071
37,847
] 3,700
124,512 37,858
(13,450) (32,154)
$111,062 $5,704

and 2009, the Institute held cash accounts with corresponding payables to the following Organizations:

Healthy South Chicago

Northern 111 Public Health Consortium
HIV/AIDS Surveillance (Cook county)
Community Health Care Access
Chicago Department of Public Health

NOTE 6 - GRANTS/CONTRACTS SUPPORT
Grants/Contracts Support consists of the following:

City of Chicago Department of Public Health
Illinois Department of Public Health

The Otho S.A. Sprauge Memorial Institute
Northern Illinois Public Health Constorium
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Health Federation of Philadelphia

10

2010
$(29,105)
(26,960)

81,731

10,014
(3,659)

$£31,785

2010

$1,283,114
896,071

2,221,827
22,699

$4,423,711

2009
$(29,341)
(12,472)
31,631
9,386
(14,821)

2009
$1,746,114
1,160,018
266,034
200,000

$3,372,166




PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 7 - OPERATING LEASE

The Institute entered into a lease agreement on June 18, 2010 for its office space at 180 N.
Michigan Ave., suite 1200. The lease commences on August 1, 2010 and expires on January 31,
2021. Monthly base rent shall abate for first six full calendar months of the term. SFAS No. 13
requires that rental expense for operating leases be recognized on a straight-line basis when the
minimum lease payments are not level. During the current year contingent lease expense
amounted to $29,651. The future minimum rent payments under the noncancelable lease term in
excess of one year as of December 31, 2010:

Year ending December 31,

2011 $60,908
2012 68,190
2013 70,005
2014 71,836
2015 73,660
Later years 402,617

Total minimum lease payments required  $747,216

NOTE 8 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Unrestricted net assets at the beginning of the year have been adjusted to reclassify from grant
revenue to deferred revenue account due to proper matching of revenue and expenses. The effect
of these adjustments decreases the net assets by $9,093. Had the errors not been made, the
change in net assets would have been increased by $9,093.
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MIRZA BAIG & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants

333 N. Miciugan Ave., Suite 2032
Chucago, IL 60601

Tel- (312) 236-2077

Fax: (312) 726-9520

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors
Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago

2025 W. Granville, Unut 209
Clucago, IL 60659

Tel: (773) 770-6124

Fax: (773) 733-0825

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
of Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago taken as a whole. The accompanying
Supplemental Schedule of Revenue and Expenses by Program is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole.

Chicago, Illinois
July 10, 2011
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PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal
grant activity of Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago (the Institute) and is
presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with requirements of OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of State,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.” Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 — SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the Institute provided federal
awards to subrecipients as follows:

Federal CFDA Amount Provided
Program Title ’ Number to Subrecipients
ARRA - Prevention and Wellness -
Community Putting Prevention to
Work 93.724 $ 917,654
HIV Prevention Projects Grant
HIV Rapid Testing 93.940 $ 916,171

NOTE 3 — NON-CASH ASSISTANCE

None.

NOTE 4 - LOAN GUARANTEES/INSURANCE

None.
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MIRZA BAIG & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants

333 N. Miciugan Ave., Suite 2032 2025 W. Granwille, Unit 209
Chucago, IL 60601 Chicago, IL 60659
Tel (312) 236-2077 Tel: (773) 770-6124
Fax' (312) 726-9520 Fax: (773) 733-0825

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago
Chicago, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago (the
Institute) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, and have issued our report thereon
dated July 10, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Institute’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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MIRZA BAIG & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Institute’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of Public Health
Institute of Metropolitan Chicago, others within the entity, the board of directors, and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Chicago, Iilinois /w"/ ﬂ K‘”? 4{ Lf/’*"}

July 10, 2011
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MIRZA BAIG & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants

333 N. Micligan Ave, Suite 2032 2025 W. Granwville, Unut 209
Chicago, IL 60601 Chuicago, IL 60659
Tel: (312) 236-2077 Tel: (773) 770-6124
Fax. (312) 726-9520 Fax' (773) 733-0825

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON
EACH MAJORPROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors
Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago
Chicago, lllinois

Compliance

We have audited Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago (the Institute) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major federal programs for
the year ended December 31, 2010. The Institute’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s result section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Institute’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Center’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Institute’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the Institute’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago, complied in all material
respects, with the requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2010.
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MIRZA BAIG & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants

Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Public Health Institute of Metropolitan Chicago is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered the Institute’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with (OMB) Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute’s internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of

compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of Public Health
Institute of Metropolitan Chicago, the board of directors, others within the entity, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Chicago, IL

July10, 2011 AA/’X/“ ((4,2 Y4 4744,'/«7
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PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Section I - Summary of Audit Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified Opinion
Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? ____yes _X_ no

e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not

Considered to be material weakness(es)? yes _x  None noted
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes _X_  no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? yes _X_  no

o Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not
Considered to be material weakness(es)? yes _x_ None noted

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X  no

——

Types of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
Program: Unqualified Opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported? ____yes X no

—_—

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA # 93.724 — U.S. Department of Health and Human services — ARRA -- Prevention and Wellness-

Community Putting
Prevention to Work
CFDA #93.940 - U.S. Department of Health and Human services - HIV Prevention Projects Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and type
B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no

Section II - Financial Statements Findings

None

Section Il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None
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PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO

SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Findings and resolutions -

None
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.- 8868 Application for Extension of Time To File an

(Rev January 2011) Exempt Organization Return OMB No 15451709
Bepartment of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service > File a separate application for each return.

¢ If you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part | and check thisbox. . . . A

¢ |f you are filing for an Additional (Not Automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part Ii (on page 2 of th|s form)
Do not complete Part Il uniless you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868.

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 if you need a 3-month automatic extension of time to file (6 months for
a corporation required to file Form 990-T), or an additional (not automatic) 3-month extension of time. You can electronically file Form
8868 to request an extension of time to file any of the forms listed in Part | or Part Il with the exception of Form 8870, Information
Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit Contracts, which must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see
instructions). For more details on the electronic filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/efile and click on e-file for Charities & Nonprofits

m Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).
A corporation required to file Form 980-T and requesting an automatic 6-month extension—check this box and complete

Parttonly. . . . . . . . .DD

All other corporations (mc/udlng 1120-C i Iers) partnershlps REMICs and trusts must use Form 7004 to request an extension of
time to file income tax retums

Type or Name of exempt organization Employer identification number
print PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 36-3959353

File by the Number, street, and room or suite no if a P O boex, see instructions

gl‘::gda;ﬁr‘” 180N. Michigan Ave., Room No. 1200

retumy See City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code For a foreign address, see Instructions.

instructons  |CHICAGO IL 60601

Enter the Return code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each return) . . e | 01 l
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code }lIs For Code
Form 990 01 Form 990-T (corporation) 07
Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08
Form 990-EZ 03 Form 4720 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12

e The books are in the care of P Oliver Nichols

Telephone No. » (312) 566-0285 FAX No. »

e If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, checkthisbox. . . . . . . . . . .p |:]
o If this is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this is
for the whole group, check thisbox . . . . . » D . If it is for part of the group, check thisbox. . . . . . . . . DD and attach a
list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for
1 | request an automatic 3-month (6 months for a corporation required to file Form 990-T) extension of time
until . §_/‘_I _5[29]_1 __________ , to file the exempt organization return for the organization named above. The extension

______________________________________ ,andending _ oo

2l the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: D initial return D Final return
Change in accounting period

3a [f this application is for Form 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits See instructions. 3a|$
b If this application is for Form 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3bis
¢ Balance due. Subtract ine 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by using
EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System) See instructions. 3c|$ 0

Caution. If you are going to make an electronic fund withdrawal with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EQ
for payment instructions.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see Instructions. Form 8868 (Rev 1-2011)
(HTA)




